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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Gothic Revival design. Steep gable flared roof, rose window in
gable. Front entrance on west end with double doors. Steep gabled
pavilion with double doors on south side. Exterior originally of pine,
painted maroon. Around 1920, church was brick veneered. Wing,
containing the parish house and church school, was added in 1940s.

Nave is smaller variation of Christ Episcopal Church, Greenville.
The pine interior is given a finish, which is rare, described as a
"lost art." It was stained or painted in a natural brown (pine-like)
and while the paint or varnish was still wet, rubbed vertically with
_ heavy burlap bagging, giving the wood a 'natural finish" of wood grain
appearance. It has not been duplicated in recent years. All pews,
walls, ceiling, groins, etc. have same finish.

Windows were originally clear glass, papered with a stained—glass-
like paper. 1In 1949 stained glass windows designed and made by the
Payne Studios of Patferson, N. J. were installed. Above and on each
side of the altar ar® window memorials to the three founders. In the
high apex west end is a rose window, especifally beautiful in the late

afternoon sunlight. All windows are memorials to former members. Walls

contain numerous memorial plaques and tablets, some white marble, some
bronze. Noteworthy is the white marble tablet listing the large number

of parishioners who served in the Confederate Army and Navy. Additional

scrolls honor veterans of subsequent wars.

Sanctuary furnishings are mahogany. Altar is surmounted by a hand-
some dark mahogany cross. The bishop's chair and the rector's chair
are heavy mahogany with a fine patina. The credence shelf and the
pulpit-lectern were made by the Rt. Reverend Sidney Thomas, direct
descendant of a church founder and Episcopal Bishop for the Diocese
of South Carolina 1928-1944.

Church has been in continuous use. Grounds include a well-kept
cemetery with tombstones bearing names of builders and early families.
Handsome wrought-iron fence and gateway encloses churchyard.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Oldest church in Ridgeway, and the oldest public Building in the
area, St. Stephen's is a gem of modified Gothic architecture.

One of few Gothic designs in Fairfield County. Pointed arches in
doorways, ceilings, and windows give the vertical feeling of pure Gothic.
Entire nave, groin-vaulted gives the impression of height.

Like Christopher Wren's English churches, these American Gothic
churches were designed for worshipping and preaching. There are no
columns to obstruct the view; the chancel and sanctuary are raised

slightly above the central nave where the congregation sits, sings,
and kneels.

All interior wood is original heart of pine, cut on plantation of
Palmer family. Foundation and chimney brick were baked on Thomas
family plantation. Land for church and burying ground was given by a
third founding family, the Davises.

Saint Stephen's Episcopal Church reflects the migration of Low Country
planters to Up Country South Carolina and the subsequent building of
the first Up Country Episcopal churches, most of which attracted various
denominations, especially Presbyterians and Huguenots, who had no churche
of their own.

Established September 25, 1839, as a Chapel-of-Ease to St. John's -
Parish, Fairfield. Administered as part of St. John's until 1889.
Rector from 1865 to 1868 was the Reverend William Porcher Dubose, who

later became Dean of the Theological School at University of the South,
Sewanee, Tennessee.

Present building was consecrated August 4, 1854, by Bishop Thomas F.
Davis. The Reverend John Dewitt McCollough, designer of numerous S. C.
Episcopal churches was architect for and later rector of St. Stephen's.

Church still serves small, active congregation.
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. NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended

level of significance of nomination is:

National [7] State [} Local
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Department Archives and History

Date

February 14, 1971

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Pregervation
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